
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, December 12, 2022, 6:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

Meeting called to order  
 
 Invocation given by Barb Vander Veen 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approve Agenda 
 Consent Agenda 

o Approval of the November 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
o Bills 
o Interim Bills  
o Resolution 2022-23: 2023 Supervisor Salary 
o Resolution 2022-24: 2023 Clerk Salary 
o Resolution 2022-25: 2023 Treasurer Salary 
o Resolution 2022-26: 2023 Trustee Salary 
o Resolution 2022-27: 2023 Board of Trustee Meeting Dates 
o Resolution 2022-28: 2023 Legal Ads 
o Resolution 2022-29: 2023 Poverty Guidelines  
o Resolution 2022-30: Board of Review – Authorizing Filing of Protest by Letter 
o Resolution 2022-31: Property Tax Payment Designee Appointments 

 For information 
o Minutes of the November 21, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting 
o Sheriff’s Department November Report 
o Fire Department Correspondence 

 Public Hearings 
 Public Comments 
 Guest Speakers 

o Undersheriff Valerie Weiss 
o County Commissioner Greg DeJong 

 Action Items 
o Resolution 2022-32: Committee Appointments 

 Discussion Items 
 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 



 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Future Agenda Items 
 Adjournment 

 
Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 4 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

NOVEMBER SESSION 2nd DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Monday, November 28, 
2022, at 6:00 p.m. and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present at Roll Call: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Vander Veen; Mr. Vander Wall; Ms. 
Hansen; Ms. Kraker; and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 
 
Absent at Roll Call: Mr. Murillo (1) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Bob Sullivan, Legal Counsel; Sergeant Cal Keuning, 
Ottawa County Sheriff’s Department; Tim Van Bennekom, Finance Director; 
Chad Doornbos, Public Utilities Superintendent; Todd Stuive, Exxel 
Engineering; Mitch Johnson, and Rodney Rotman.  
 
Ms. Vander Veen pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 22-198 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the agenda of today as presented. The 

motion passed.  
 
BOT 22-199 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions:  
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the November 14, 2022, Board of Trustees 
meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $369,227.40 and interim 
payments of $986,456.92, as presented by the summary report for November 
29, 2022. 

 
The motion passed.  
 

Items Received for Information 
 
1. October Finance Report 



Page 2 of 4 
 

2. Minutes of the November 7, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting 
3. Liquor License Transfer Notice 
4. October Sheriff’s Department Report 
 
Public Hearings- None 
 
Public Comments 
Comments were received from:  
1. Rodney Rotman, West Olive 
 

BOT 22-200 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Guest Speakers 
1. Tim Van Bennekom, Finance Director, provided a revised copy of 

proposed Resolution 2022-19. He indicated the copy provided in the 
board packet had a typo in the general fund balance.  

 
 Several board members had questions and comments.  

  
 Action Items 
BOT 22-201 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and/or Supervisor to 

sign revised Resolution 2022-19: 2023 Fiscal Year Budget; a resolution to establish 
the General Appropriations Act of the Charter Township of Allendale for the Fiscal 
Year 2023; to make appropriations; to provide for the expenditure of 
appropriations; to provide for the disposition of income received by the Township; 
to define the powers and duties of the Township officers in relation to the 
administration of the budget; and to provide remedies for refusal or neglect to 
comply with the requirements of this resolution. The motion passed as shown by 
the following votes:  

 YEAS: Ms. Hansen; Ms. Kraker; Ms. Vander Veen; Mr. Zeinstra; Mr. Vander Wall; 
and Mr. Elenbaas (6) 

 NAYS: None (0) 
 Absent: Mr. Murillo (1) 
 
BOT 22-202 Ms. Kraker moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and/or Supervisor to sign 

Resolution 2022-20: Allendale and Blendon Townships Public Water Supply 
Contract; a resolution approving said contract; to authorize the Clerk and/or 
Supervisor to sign the Allendale and Blendon Townships Public Water Supply 
Contract; and to revoke any resolutions in conflict. The motion passed.   

  
BOT 22-203 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and/or Supervisor to 

sign Resolution 2022-21: Water System Rate Schedule; a resolution establishing a 
schedule of rates and charges effective January 1, 2023; and to repeal any 



Page 3 of 4 
 

resolutions in conflict. The motion passed.   
 
BOT 22-204 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and/or Supervisor to 

sign Resolution 2022-22: Sewer System Rate Schedule; a resolution establishing a 
schedule of rates and charges effective January 1, 2023; and to repeal any 
resolutions in conflict. The motion passed.   

 
BOT 22-205 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve Pearline Estates Tentative Preliminary Plat. 

The motion passed.   
 
 Discussion Items 
  
 Mr. Elenbaas provided an overview of the cemetery burial fee adjustment request 

from Mr. Rodney Rotman for his father Mr. Ronald Rotman, who was a lifelong 
Allendale resident.  

 
BOT 22-206 Mr. Vander Wall moved to amend the agenda to include “Burial Fee Adjustment 

Request” to Action Items. The motion passed.  
 
 Action Items 
BOT 22-207 Ms. Kraker moved to permit the waiver of non-resident cemetery fees for Ronald 

Rotman on the basis that he was a lifelong resident of Allendale and had to move 
from the Township solely for health care purposes. The motion passed.  

 
 Discussion Items 
  
 The board requested Mr. Elenbaas and Ms. Hansen draft a new cemetery fee 

schedule resolution to include non-resident fee exemption for lifelong residents of 
Allendale that must move from the Township solely for health care purposes.   

 
 Tim VanBennekom, Finance Director, provided investment opportunities and 

requested directive from the board on which options to take.  
 
 Mr. Elenbaas requested the board send him items for strategic planning purposes 

that they would like to see elevated to a deeper discussion.  He sought feedback on 
how best to proceed and take action. Mr. Elenbaas indicated that strategic 
planning initiatives will be coming to a future meeting.  

 
 Several board members had questions and comments.  
  

Public Comments -None 
   

BOT 22-208 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 Board Comments 
 Mr. Vander Wall complimented Shine on the fantastic light display on M-45.  
 
 Mr. Elenbaas informed the board that he has received additional requests 

surrounding tree preservation efforts. He reminded the board that tree 
preservation language was considered by this body at a recent meeting, and 
no action was requested by the board. Mr. Elenbaas will not pursue further 
action on tree preservation. He indicated that if any other board members 
would like to pursue action, they will need to initiate it.   

 
 Ms. Vander Veen thanked Tim Van Bennekom, Finance Director for presenting 

a budget that is well explained. Ms. Vander Veen informed the board that she 
has submitted her resignation as Allendale Township Trustee to Mr. Elenbaas. 
Her resignation is effective January 10, 2023. She indicated that the new 
legislation, which does not allow for remote participation unless a trustee is ill, 
hinders her ability to be available for township meetings in the winter months. 
Ms. Vander Veen thanked the board for the years of service together.  

 
 Mr. Elenbaas provided a brief overview of the steps, process, and timeline to 

fill a board vacancy.   
  
BOT 22-209 Mr. Vander Wall moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:13 p.m. The motion 

passed.  
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















Resolution 2022-23 
Supervisor’s Salary 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 
 
Present:  
Absent:  
  
The following resolution was offered:  
 
Motioned by ______________, supported by _____________ that the Allendale Charter 
Township Board, Ottawa County, Michigan, sets the 2023 salary for the township Supervisor at 
$86,994.00, which represents a 3% cost of living increase.  Effective date January 1, 2023. 
 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2022-24 
Clerk’s Salary 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 
Present:  
 
Absent:  
  
The following resolution was offered:  
 
Motioned by ___________, supported by _____________ that the Allendale Charter Township 
Board, Ottawa County, Michigan, sets the 2022 salary for the township Clerk at $76,120.00, 
which represents a 3% cost of living increase.  Effective date January 1, 2023. 
 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2022-25 
Treasurer’s Salary 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 
Present:  
 
Absent:  
  
The following resolution was offered:  
 
Motioned by _________, supported by __________ that the Allendale Charter Township Board, 
Ottawa County, Michigan, sets the 2023 salary for the township Treasurer at $6,013.00, which 
represents a 3% cost of living increase.  Effective date January 1, 2023. 
 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2022-26 
Trustee’s Salary 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 
Present:  
 
Absent:  
  
The following resolution was offered:  
 
Motioned by _________, supported by __________ that the Allendale Charter Township Board, 
Ottawa County, Michigan, sets the 2023 salary for the township Trustees at $4,425.00, which 
represents a 3% cost of living increase and will continue to receive an extra meeting per diem 
rate of $42.44 per additional meeting.  Effective date January 1, 2023. 
 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2022-27 
2023 Board Meeting Dates 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 

Present:  
 
Absent:  
  

The following resolution was offered:  

Motioned by _________, supported by __________ that the Allendale Charter Township Board, 
Ottawa County, Michigan set the following dates for the 2023 Township Board meetings for 
Mondays at 6:00 pm (unless otherwise noted), at the Township office located at 6676 Lake 
Michigan Drive, Allendale, Michigan: 

January 9   July 10 

January 23   July 24 

February 13   August 14 

February 27   August 28 

March 13   September 11 

March 27   September 25 

April 10   October 9 

April 24   October 23 

May 8    November 13 

May 22   November 27 

June 12   December 11 

June 26   December 27 [8:00 a.m.] * 

 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 



Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 

 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 

 

 



Resolution 2022-28 
Legal Ads 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 
Present:  
 
Absent:  
  
The following resolution was offered:  
 
Motioned by _________, supported by __________ that the Allendale Charter Township Board, 
Ottawa County, Michigan, will utilize the Sunday Edition of the Grand Rapids Press for legal ads 
for the year 2023.  
 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2022-29 
Poverty Guidelines 

 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale Charter 
Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, on December 12, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., local time. 
 
Present:  
 
Absent:  
 
The following resolution was motioned by _____________ and supported by ______________. 

WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is within the purview of the 
Township; and 

WHEREAS, the homestead of persons who, in the judgement of the Board of Review, by reason 
of poverty, are unable to contribute to the public charges is eligible for exemption in whole or 
in part from property taxation under PA 390, 1994 (MCL211.7u); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390 of 1994, on January 28, 2008, the Township adopted the 
following guidelines for the Assessor and Board of Review to implement in 2009.  The 
guidelines include, but are not limited to, the specific income and asset levels of claimant and 
all persons residing in the household, including any property credit returns, filed in the current 
or immediately preceding year; and 

WHEREAS, changes to those guidelines may be made by the Township Board; and 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services requires local governing bodies 
to adopt these guidelines annually. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that in 2023 the Assessor and Board of Review shall follow 
the attached [Exhibit A] stated guidelines and Federal guidelines in granting or denying an 
exemption, unless the Board of Review determines there are substantial and compelling 
reasons why there should be a deviation from the policy and Federal guidelines, and these are 
communicated in writing to the claimant. 

YEAS:  
NAYS:  
Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 



Exhibit A 

 

In addition to meeting the federal poverty guidelines: the applicant must meet the Asset Level test. 
Household assets cannot exceed Seven Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500). Household assets 
include but are not limited to automobiles, furniture, appliances, stocks, bonds, mutual funds, bank 
accounts, pensions, and inheritance. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Size of Family Unit 
Poverty 
Guidelines 

1 $13,590 
2 $18,310 
3 $23,030 
4 $27,750 
5 $32,470 
6 $37,190 
7 $41,910 
8 $46,630 
For each additional person $4,720 



Resolution 2022-30 
Board of Review-Authorizing Filing of Protest by Letter 

 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 

Present:  
 
Absent:  
  

The following resolution was offered:  

 
Motioned by _________ and supported by _______________. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that in order to ease the burden on taxpayers, the Assessor and the Board of 
Review, and to ensure that all taxpayers have an equal opportunity to be heard by the Board of 
Review, Allendale Charter Township hereby resolves, according to provisions of MCL 211.30 (8) 
of the General Property Tax Act, that the Board of Review shall receive letters of protest 
regarding assessments from resident taxpayers from the first day in February until it adjourns 
from the public hearings for which it meets to hear such protests.  
All notices of assessment change and all advertisements of the Board of Review meets are to 
include a statement that the resident taxpayers may protest by letter to the Board of Review.  
 
YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 

Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 

 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 



Resolution 2022-31 

Property Tax Payment Designee Appointments 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022. 

PRESENT:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

The following resolution was offered by ___________ and supported by _________________. 

BE IT RESOLVED that the following Elected Officials (other than the Treasurer) and employees 
be authorized Designees of the Treasurer in order to collect/receive property tax payments per 
Public Act 129 of 2019: 

Adam Elenbaas 
Jody Hansen  
Candy Kraker 
Ken Murillo 
Barb VanderVeen 
Bruce Zeinstra 
David Vander Wall 
Elizabeth Szymanski 
Michelle Kowalczyk 
Natasha Shepard 

Kelli McGovern 
Tammy Walker 
Denise Wiersma 
Kathy Hanes 
Heath Gorney 
Connor Galligan 
Lydale Weaver 
Larry Haveman 
Zachary Fields 
Tim VanBennekom 

 
This Authorization shall only be for tax payments that are received at the township office during 
scheduled office hours. 
 
Yes: 
 
No:  

Resolution adopted on December 12, 2022. 

 

 
 

Jody L. Hansen Adam Elenbaas 

Allendale Charter Township Clerk Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 



The undersigned Clerk of Allendale Charter Township hereby certifies that this 
Resolution was duly adopted by the Allendale Charter Township Board of 
Trustees at a meeting held on the 12th day of December, 2022 pursuant to proper 
notice and compliance with Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1976. 

 
_______________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen 
Clerk, Allendale Charter Township 

 
 



ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
November 21, 2022 

7:00 p.m.   

Allendale Township Public Meeting Room  

 

1. Call the Meeting to Order 

2. Roll Call: 

Present: Longcore, Adams, Zuniga, Chapla, Nadda, Zeinstra 

Absent: Westerling 

Staff and Guests Present: Planner Greg Ransford, Chris Grzenkowicz, Andrew Shaw, Dan Nyenhuis, Eric 

DeYoung, Kelly Kuiper, Chad Koster, Michael Bosgraaf 

3. Communications and Correspondence: None 

4. Motion by Adams to approve the November 7, 2022, Planning Commission minutes as presented. Seconded 

by Zeinstra. Approved 6-0 

5. Motion by Longcore to approve the November 21, 2022, Planning Commission agenda as presented. 

Seconded by Zuniga. Approved 6-0 

6. Public Comments for non-public hearing item: 

Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. 

Seeing no comments, he closed the public hearing section. 

7. Public Hearings: None 

8. Site Plan Review: 

A. ALDI Site Plan Application – 5316 Lake Michigan Dr.  

• Seeking 20,161 square foot assortment grocery store 

Chris Grzenkowicz, representing the applicant, presented the project and noted that ALDI is 

requesting a waiver for a sidewalk on the south side of the property running from the building to 

Farmway Dr. that it could be 5 feet wide instead of the required 8 feet. 

Planner Ransford reviewed his memo and reviewed the history of this project. 

Mr. Zeinstra asked if a notation on the plan stating “future cross access” would be acceptable to 

show, then the easement could be created in the future. Commissioners opined that it would be 

acceptable but discussed how would this be followed through on in the future. Whether it would be 

in the title or a development agreement. 

Mr. Zeinstra suggested the type of tree on the east side of the building be revised and that the 

number of trees on the north side be reduced. 

A representative from ALDI will provide the Township with a sample access document they have 

used elsewhere.  

Commissioners discussed the relief of the 8-foot sidewalk requirement. Consensus among 

Commissioners was that the 5-foot sidewalk would be sufficient. 

Motion by Adams to approve the ALDI site plan with the following conditions: 

• Landscaping along the east side of the building will be revised by moving the White Pines to the 

east corner of the property and reduce the number of trees on the north side of the building. 

• Adding a notation on the plans for an easement for future cross access and confirmation with the 

Township Attorney on how to record this access. 



• Correct the grading plans. 

• Correct the note for painting the bollards. 

Seconded by Zeinstra. Approved 6-0 

9. New Business: 

A. Map Amendment Applications 

• Stillwater Capital – 11500 56th Ave. 

• Seeking rezoning from Industrial to R-1 

Kelly Kuiper, representing the applicant, presented the request for rezoning. 

Planner Ransford reviewed his memo. 

Commissioners discussed the highest and best use of the property, the wetlands on the remaining 

property and the roads. 

Commissioners directed Planner Ransford to set the public hearing for this project. 

• IMD Capital, LLC – 10222 52nd Ave., 10274 52nd Ave., 10320 52nd Ave. 

• Seeking rezoning from RE to R-4 

Chad Koster and Mike Bosgraaf introduced themselves as the applicants and Eric DeYoung, 

from Nederveld, presented the rezoning project. They would like to rezone to properties to 

construct upscale multi-family housing community. 

Planner Ransford reviewed the memorandum he prepared. 

Commissioners discussed potential density for the suggested use. 

Commissioners opined that this would be a good fit for this area and directed Planner Ransford 

to schedule the public hearing. 

10. Old Business: None 

11. Public Comments: 

Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section and seeing no comments he closed the public 

comment section. 

12. Township Board Reports: 

Mr. Zeinstra reported that the Board had the budget public hearing. The Board discussed street light 

assessments, health insurance and a discussion with Chad Doornbos about a possible water and sewer 

agreement with a developer in Blendon Township.  

13. Commissioner and Staff Comments: 

Mr. Nadda questioned how many more student apartments Allendale can handle?  

14. Chairperson Longcore adjourned the meeting at 8:13 p.m. 

 

 

Next meeting December 5, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

Minutes respectfully submitted by Kelli McGovern 

◊ 



  

County of Ottawa 
 

Steve A. Kempker 
Sheriff 

 
Valerie L. Weiss 

Undersheriff 
       
 
 

Sheriff’s Office 
 Headquarters/Administration Correctional Facility 
 12220 Fillmore Street 12130 Fillmore Street     
 West Olive, Michigan   49460 West Olive, Michigan   49460 
 (616) 738-4000 or (888) 731-1001 (616) 786-4140 or (888) 731-1001 
 Fax:  (616) 738-4062 Fax:  (616) 738-4099 

 
 
 
 
 
Date:   12-05-2022 
 
To:      Allendale Township Supervisor Adam Elenbaas 
 
From:  Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
RE:     Monthly Report (November 2022) 
 
 
The Sheriff’s Office during the month of November responded to 463 calls for service.  
 
Allendale Township Basic EMT and MFR units, with assistance of general road patrol responded 
to 51 medicals and 4 personal injury accidents.  
 
Traffic contacts during the month of November, deputies issued 71 total tickets. 
  

 
School News: 
Deputy Ortman had a busy month in teaching numerous classes in health. Topics discussed 
included drugs, alcohol, vapes, and the consequences that go along with it. Other topics taught 
were threatening and harassing communications and how technology can get you into trouble. 
 
The Ottawa County Sheriff’s Honor Guard assisted with the Veterans Day assembly at the 
Allendale High School.  
 

               



Life Long Learner Presentation: 
A presentation was given to the Life Long Learner group during their Thanksgiving luncheon at 
Main St. Pub. The presention highlighted internet crimes, frauds, and phone scams. There was 
time after the presentation for questions and answers.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The Ottawa County Sheriff’s Office continues to work with Allendale Township, off-campus 
housing personnel, and GVSU to address issues and find solutions to the issues that have been 
occuring “after-hours” in several of the off-campus student housing communities.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Thank you 
 
Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



Total Number of Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 400 356 322 420 396 405 435 440 501 501 425 376
2020 366 450 300 290 389 410 414 500 458 458 454 374
2021 396 395 463 416 516 433 450 475 512 520 407 436
2022 394 399 436 420 488 460 437 442 527 533 463

Total Tickets by Month

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 67 53 95 86 34 56 76 116 102 195 99 80

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Allendale Township Calls for Service

2019

2020

2021

2022



2020 84 151 78 33 64 68 72 93 70 63 63 72
2021 70 40 66 79 85 116 73 88 177 129 88 108
2022 93 104 149 114 90 71 78 73 100 166 71

Traffic Crashes 

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 62 49 32 31 20 26 29 30 30 65 70 45
2020 44 55 22 14 28 15 18 23 33 31 49 37
2021 37 29 28 27 30 35 28 31 34 43 36 43
2022 54 36 20 24 26 26 24 20 34 51 46

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

0

50

100

150

200

250

Allendale Township Tickets

2019

2020

2021

2022



Medical Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 54 52 55 58 66 66 53 61 67 65 50 61
2020 58 57 49 44 41 43 53 45 42 54 55 42
2021 46 32 48 41 59 35 37 60 41 64 42 48
2022 47 50 61 47 61 55 46 56 50 61 51

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

2019

2020

2021

2022

60

70

80

Allendale Township Medical Calls



Calls of Interest 2022

January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 1 3 3 2 4 1 6 3 3 3 2
Larcenies 7 19 15 6 7 18 11 15 12 6 8
Shoplifting 0 1 0 0 4 1 1 1 2 0 0
Mental 7 6 5 15 10 15 9 6 11 15 14
Civil 11 11 8 12 5 8 11 14 10 11 11
Assaults 5 5 3 5 3 4 4 2 7 9 3
Domestic 26 13 17 20 21 25 25 18 27 37 22
Animal 8 16 14 18 30 28 24 15 24 15 14
Alarms 9 6 7 5 7 8 12 3 8 5 7
Traffic 19 33 35 34 40 39 31 31 41 37 30
Narcotics 2 0 3 1 0 1 2 3 2 2 4
Weapons 0 1 4 7 3 4 2 2 1 3 2

Calls of Interest 2021

January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 7 4 1 9 4 1 5 6 5 9 5 2

0

10

20

30

40

50
2019

2020

2021

2022



Larcenies 8 6 6 9 12 8 7 12 18 13 10 12
Shoplifting 0 1 1 1 0 2 0 1 1 0 1 0
Mental 6 2 11 5 9 11 13 12 7 13 11 12
Civil 6 11 8 8 6 12 10 9 9 11 2 8
Assaults 4 6 3 1 3 4 6 2 4 5 2 4
Domestic 28 22 26 15 27 31 23 14 29 23 17 26
Animal 18 18 15 14 10 18 17 19 16 13 9 18
Alarms 4 7 9 8 6 7 10 8 5 13 9 15
Traffic 26 34 38 41 48 37 32 37 35 41 32 45
Narcotics 3 2 3 1 2 8 2 3 6 3 5 1



December 6, 2022 

Allendale Charter Township Fire Department 

RE: Thank You 

Dear Mike, Tony, and Crew, 

I cannot thank you enough for giving me the opportunity to discover a little more about the day 
in the life of a firefighter. I’ve always had a deep respect for our fire and police members, but 
this opportunity brought that respect to a whole new level. The dedication and selfless service 
you and your team provide our community is priceless. Allendale Township is truly blessed to 
have such an amazing fire department that is passionate about helping their community.  

I am so thankful for the patience of you and your team members as I know I completely 
bombarded everyone with a lot of questions. The awe of what I witnessed this past weekend is 
indescribable. What I do know is this: the culture, support, and camaraderie of your team is 
inspirational. Your crew is genuine, caring, and sincere. Allendale can rest easy knowing we will 
be well cared for in the event of an emergency.   

Thank you for the opportunity to be a part of your world for a weekend. You have given me an 
insight many people will never know, but I wish all could experience so they would understand 
the true meaning of selfless service.  

Thank you for all that you do! 

Sincerely,  

Jody Hansen 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk 



Resolution 2022-32 
Committee Appointments 

 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on December 12, 2022 
 

Present:  
 
Absent:  
  

The following resolution was offered:  

Motioned by _________, supported by __________ . 

BE IT RESOLVED that the following residents be appointed to the following committees/boards: 

Planning Commission - 3 year Term 

Mark Adams, Term Ending 12/31/2025 

Rick Chapla, Term Ending 12/31/2025 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals - 3 year Term 

 Eric Westerling, Term Ending 12/31/2024 

 

Library Advisory Board - 3 year Term 

 Margaret Wheeler, Term Ending 12/31/2025 

 

Downtown Development Authority - 4 year Term 

 Tom Zuniga, Term Ending 12/31/2026 

 Lawrence Meredith, Term Ending 12/31/2026 

 Steven Spriensma, Partial Term Ending 12/31/2026 

 

 

 



Election Commission - 1 year Term 

 Candy Kraker, Term Ending 12/31/2023 

VACANT- Term Ending 12/31/2023 

 

Board of Review - 3 year Term 

TaMara Walker, Term Ending 12/31/2024 

Phyllis Klinge, Term Ending 12/31/2024 

Steven Spriensma, Term Ending 12/31/2024 

Richard Joslyn – Alternate, Term Ending 12/31/2024 

 

YEAS:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT: 
 

Resolution declared adopted on December 12, 2022. 

 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 

 

 


	11-28-2022 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	NOVEMBER SESSION 2nd DAY

	ADPA78F.tmp
	Sheet1


